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south facades. Roof cresting shown on the 1890s photograph (Photo 26) has deteriorated and
fallen off over the decades.

The basement entrance, located on the south side of the building, is a large opening
closed by a double steel door (Photos 1, 2). Basement space, divided into two rooms by a
partition wall (Photo 7) that includes huge stones salvaged from the preceding jail, includes a
workroom and a storage and mechanical services room.

The jail initially had steam heat, hot and cold water, a bathroom, closets, and gas and
electric lights. Inmates crushed rock in the basement (Photo 7). Felons were lodged in the
heavy steel cages on the first floor (Photo 11). The jail kitchen is also on the first floor (Photo
9). The corridor on the west side of the kitchen and booking room was known as the jailer’s
corridor (Photo 10); it contains a complex lever which allowed the jailer to open one or all of
the cells without coming in contact with the prisoners. The second corridor, “the prisoner’s
corridor” (Photo 11) was perpendicular to the first and provided access to the cells’ entrances.
Upstairs, the large open “bull pen,” or room designed to hold persons charged with
misdemeanors (Photo 12), has five steel cots extending from each of the end walls, and shower
stalls and toilet facilities filling other spaces. On a raised level sometimes referred to as the
“third floor” were cells for female prisoners with a walk-around passage for jail attendants.
Engineering studies show that the concrete and steel floors are badly decomposed and will
require replacement as the renovation process continues.

Jailer’s Dwelling. The adjoining 1892 brick Italianate-styled 2-story 3-bay single pile
jailer’s dwelling (Photos 1, 13-26) has a stone foundation, the main block having beneath it a
full-size basement entered from the north side. The dwelling has tooled end chimneys,
bracketed eaves, wooden hoodmolds with small brackets, a wooden Victorian era front porch
with turned posts and cornice, and a roof covering of standing seam copper. The center
passage, single-pile form of the house is a form that dated to an earlier era but which provided
privacy to living activities taking place in flanking rooms.* A photograph taken during the
jail’s early years (Photo 26) reveals a small unsheltered stoop that during the next several years
was replaced with an elaborately ornamented . front porch spanning the three lower-story
openings. The original ell of the house extends from the north parlor on a graded stone
foundation and has a flue chimney on its west end. There is a currently non-functioning outside
entrance on the north side, its stoop and steps no longer in place (Photos 13, 17).

The jailer’s dwelling measures 44'4" wide and 39'2" deep, the latter measurement
including the 21'2" depth of the two-story block and the 18' depth of the ell. The dry stone
foundation encloses a basement with a dirt floor. Structural timbers have circular saw marks.
Foundation stones on the main facade have bush hammer indentations. Brick is laid in running
bond, an occasional header appearing among the stretchers. There is a row of alternating
headers and stretchers several feet above the porch floor (Photo 15). In protected areas, the
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mortar joints retain a bead of white paint. Chimneys are set inside the end walls. The low
pitched roof is covered with raised seam copper sheathing, a recent renovation measure. The
centered front door (Photos 14) and the north side doors have transoms. There are paneled
wooden hoodmolds with small brackets over the windows. The flat-roofed front porch,
renovation of which began in August 2001, has turned posts rising to gracefully curved
brackets with teardrops and an open cornice with spooled trim rests on a concrete block base
(Photos 13, 14). The porch shelters the central door and flanking windows (Photo 14). The
porch floor is concrete. Beneath the boxed guttering is a brief raking cornice carrying curved
brackets. These brackets flank the hoodmolds and are paired at the corners. The tall windows
have 6/6 sash.

Each end of the main block of the house is pierced by two 6/6 windows with wooden
hoodmolds, one window on each floor (Photos 1, 13). There are two small round attic vents
with round grilles on the north end (Photo 16). On the south flat-roofed later €ll are a tall
window with 6/6 sash and a hoodmold and a small diamond shaped window that was added
probably in the early 20" century (Photos 3, 24, 26).

The house has a center passage plan with a wide staircase with ornate spindles and a
landing commanding the north side of the central hall (Photo 19). The space beneath the
staircase is enclosed and forms a closet. Ends of the steps have decorative applied trim that
recalls the exterior curved brackets. Woodwork includes deep heavy baseboards and heavily
tooled window and door surrounds. Flooring consists of random width poplar boards. On
either side of the central hall, upper and lower, are large rooms with fireplaces fitted with
wooden mantelpieces typical of the late-19th century (Photo 20). Plaster, which is badly
deteriorated, is applied directly to the brick on vertical walls and to sawn lath on ceilings
(Photos 21, 22). Exterior windows and the interior plaster immediately surrounding them were
restored in 2001.

Sanborn maps dated 1895, 1907, and 1925 (Illustrations 10, 11, 12) show a small
detached building behind the dining room ell. The 1895 map reveals the dwelling without a
front porch and a courtyard enclosed by an extension of the south wall of the jailer’s dwelling
with an open area west of the house and south of the ell. The bathroom and kitchen ell was
built between 1895 and 1907, as indicated by Sanborn maps for those two years. The latter
addition enclosed the dwelling’s original back porch and provided an enclosed connection
between the dwelling and the jail. The 1907 map shows a front porch in its present alignment,
while the 1925 Sanborn shows a porch extending across the full front expanse, suggesting
either a drawing error or indicating a rapid replacement of another early porch.

Major physical changes in the building over time include: deterioration of exterior
wooden members of both of the Jail Complex’s components; deterioration of interior plaster
and some wooden components; deterioration of upper portions of chimneys and lintels over the
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second-story windows; deterioration of roof components including dormers, finials, and
cresting; in- filling of all but a narrow vertical slat of jail windows with brick; installation of a
fire escape on the jail’s south side; construction of the ornate front porch during the complex’s
early decades; removal of the side stoop, probably near the conclusion of the complex’s use as
a jail facility; and replacing the porch foundation and floor with concrete.

Select and crucial repairs have been made during the four years that the property has
been leased by the Scott County Arts Consortium. This organization, a non-profit corporation
that leases the property from Scott Fiscal Court, is raising funds and making repairs with the
goal of creating an arts and cultural center. At the same time, as renovation progresses, the
organization is using the jailer’s dwelling for a limited number of public and educational events
including a recent juried art exhibit. Detailed renovation plans and a prioritization schedule
have been completed by Stanley Boyd, planner and architect, for the continuing restoration.
(See drawings by Boyd [Illustrations 1-6]); Illustration 7, section of 1815 plat taken from
County Lines Book 1, page 39; and site plan drawing, Illustration 8.) Rehabilitation efforts,
closely coordinated with Kentucky Heritage Council staff, have brought in leading artisans to
replace the former roof with one of standing seam copper; to repair deteriorated brickwork
including crumbling chimney stacks on the jail and the dwelling and above the dwelling’s
second-story lintels of the dwelling, and to repair a hole in the foundation and wall of the
dwelling’s ell, and to repair deteriorated windows and doors of the dwelling. The organization
assures that all repairs and renovations will conform with the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for Rehabilitation.

Integrity Evaluation. The Jail Complex is being nominated under Criteria A and C for
its significance in the history of politics, government, and architectural design. The basis for
these judgments has to do with the property’s ability to exhibit important Victorian-era styling
in Scott County, and its ability to convey associations with an early twentieth-century
governor’s assassination, a case that is important to the entire state. With these bases for its
significance, the complex must retain the following integrity factors to be eligible for the
National Register: Design, Materials, Workmanship, Location, Setting, Feeling, and
Association.

Design. The Romanesque Revival and Italianate design features that cause the Scott
County Jail Complex to successfully mediate between its Victorian-era commercial neighbors
to the east and residential neighbors of a similar time period to the west, within its eligibility
under Criterion C , include the buildings’stone and brick masonry as well as the detail. The
jail’s foundation of rough-faced stone with rounded mortar joints, a feature evident on historic
buildings on either side of the complex, should be protected. The Romanesque-style entry
portico, pilasters, elaborate corbeling, and heavily tooled chimneys are among the exterior
design features that cause the jail to stand out as a Main Street landmark, especially among its
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commercial peers, as are other elements of detail including the dormers with their multi-paned
double-sash windows and metal pinnacles strategically placed at corners of the building as well
as on the sides of the dormers. Exterior features of the dwelling that bring the Jail Complex
distinction among the residential neighbors to the west and thus merit protection include the
brickwork, scored with a bead where protected by the Victorian-era porch; the tall stately
windows with double-hung sash and hoodmolds, and the front door with transom and the
applied detail. As the dwelling has had a porch with turned posts and spooled cornice during
most of its historic era, that feature merits protection.

Exterior design features relating to the complex’s eligibility under Criterion A, which
address the complex’s role in the incarceration and trials of the Kentucky Secretary of State and
a clerk in his office for the 1900 killing of Governor William Goebel, evolve from the
complex’s imposing appearance conveying strength, stability, and security. This is
accomplished by the heaviness of the stone foundation and brickwork of the jail as well as the
stateliness of the exterior of the house. Adaptation of the facility into a cultural and arts center
may require removal of much of the actual steel jail. The interior jail structure should be
carefully documented with portions of it being retained to recall the fact that the complex came
into being as a jail facility. The new use might necessitate that bars on windows be removed to
admit light for artists’ studios. In such case, the bars could be remounted allowing them to
swing open or shut as needs change.

Materials. Fabric giving the Jail Complex integrity includes the stone and brick
masonry, metal trim, and metal roofs. While it may not be possible to replicate the iron tile
roof, patterned roofing material or a metal roof may accomplish a purpose similar to that
intended by the heavy roofing material. Wooden windows and sash with muntins are
significant features and should be retained or carefully replicated, a process already followed in
the restoration of exterior dwelling windows. Plaster walls should be repaired or replaced in
kind. Steel was the basic component of the interior of the jail; some cell and operative features
should be retained to recall the jail’s history for almost a century.

Workmanship. Physical factors required for the Jail Complex to be said to possess
integrity of Workmanship mandate evidence of precise and careful craftsmanship in stone and
brick masonry, metal work, and carpentry, with the end result of not only providing a handsome
set of buildings but also making a statement of strength and resolve to persons charged with
crime. This is borne out with the superb craftsmanship of the two buildings, most notably the
jail foundation, the brick masonry evident in all facades of both buildings, the magnificent
corbeling of the jail, the wood detail in openings and the dwelling’s interior trim, and the solid
character of both buildings. Workmanship in the corbeling of the Jail Complex is especially
outstanding and may very well have set a standard for successive construction in the
community.
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The Scott County Arts Consortium ,as long term-lessee of the Jail Complex, has already
set a standard for superb workmanship in its various renovations. The organization has worked
closely with the Kentucky Heritage Council staff as it has chosen roofing, masonry, plaster, and
carpentry professionals to stabilize and repair the facility. These workers have honored the
earlier craftsmanship by carefully repairing these elements when possible and replicating those
beyond repair.

Location. The meeting of the National Register integrity standard of Location
necessitates that the Jail Complex occupy its original location. The major factor involved in
the location for the Scott County Jail Complex on this site on a confining lot on the former
“town commons” on the banks of the historic Royal Spring Branch is historic. The lot is not
only the spot granted to the County for a jail by the City in 1821, but it is also the site which the
County chose to continue as the Jail Complex location in 1892. This jail lot location meets this
integrity component.

Setting. To meet the National Register integrity factor of Setting, the Jail Complex
must relate to its critical position between historic downtown Georgetown and historic West
Main Street. The Jail Complex continues today to provide this bridge. Over time the West
Main residential neighborhood has been well maintained while renovations and new
construction have changed some of the character of several buildings to the east. Nevertheless,
the jail’s setting addresses the considerable amount of Victorian-era artistry that remains
downtown . Individuals, firms, and local government considering other renovations downtown,
should consider the overall appearance of the nearby neighborhoods which helped inspire or
were inspired by the 1892 Jail Complex.

Feeling. To meet the National Register integrity factor of Feeling, the Jail Complex has
been and must continue to be that important bridge between downtown and the West Main
Street historic neighborhood. It must also relate to its historic role as a singularly important
streetscape component, stylistically representing the positive character of its law enforcement
capacity while reducing the emphasis on the jail’s interior’s punishment component, although
the general appearance should not obscure the fact that the complex building served as a county
jail for almost 100 years. The future of the complex as an arts and culture center may require
the admission of natural light through the windows; in this event the bars could be mounted on
swivels to allow their opening.

Association. To meet the National Register integrity component of Association, the Jail
Complex should maintain that intermediary position between two historic districts and result in
the viewers’ appreciation of the earlier role of this historic government building complex as a
jail facility. The builders indeed accomplished their intention to associate the exterior of this
property, particularly the jail, with the overriding goals of law and government and
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contributions to the streetscape than with simply building a functional jail. The dwelling is
immediately associated in the mind of the viewer as a home for the family of the official
elected to house persons charged with or convicted of crimes and conveyed a statement of that
official’s importance to the community at large .
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8. Statement of Significance Scott County Jail Complex

The Scott County Jail Complex (SC-G-201) provides an historic and visually
impressive architectural link between two Georgetown historic districts, the predominantly
Victorian-era downtown and West Main Street residential neighborhoods. The Jail Complex’s
architectural significance derives from its design, stylistic features, and detail that are noted in
the Scott County context study, “Late Victorian-Era Styles in Scott County Architecture, 1865-
1910.” The complex meets National Register Criterion C in the area of Architecture because of
its exemplary late-Victorian-era design, materials, and workmanship; its strategic location and
setting; and the feeling and association that relate it to the two flanking historic neighborhoods
as well as its sense of propriety and power as a law enforcement facility. The jail also meets
Criterion A within the Area of Significance of Politics/Government and is significant within the
context, “Crime and Punishment in Scott County, Kentucky, 1865-1918.” The complex,
located on the east bank of the city’s historic Royal Spring Branch, includes the ornately
corbeled and detailed brick 1892 Romanesque Revival-style jail set on a high stone basement
foundation and the connected Italianate-styled two-story brick jailer’s dwelling, built at the
same time and also undergirded by a stone basement foundation. The complex also has an
important place in the history of Kentucky because it was here where two principals in the
January 31, 1900 assassination of Kentucky Governor William Goebel were lodged during a
series of nationally publicized trials that took place in Georgetown between 1900 and 1908. It
is associated with a landmark event in state history. Specifically, this complex is where two
important Kentucky political figures, Kentucky Secretary of State Caleb Powers and Henry
Youtsey, a clerk in Powers’ office, were housed while charged and being tried with complicity
in the killing of the governor.

All of Georgetown’s Main Street except this complex and the Georgetown Water
Company building across the street is listed in the National Register of Historic Places.
Georgetown’s downtown commercial district is included in two National Register nominations,
the Main Street Commercial District with 34 buildings, listed February 24, 1975, and the
expanded downtown district of 39 buildings, listed April 15, 1982. Royal Spring Park (SC-G-
104) was listed May 2, 1973. The East Main Residential District with 44 buildings was listed
June 7, 1978; and the West Main Residential District (19 buildings) was listed November 5,
1985.

Late Victorian-Era Styles in Scott County Architecture, 1865-1910. As jail
construction got underway in 1892, owners of downtown buildings were in the process of
rebuilding their commercial district as a result of a series of fires that began in 1869 and
continued through 1885. The downtown district lay immediately east of the jail site. The
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result of the ongoing reconstruction of Georgetown’s commercial district was a new and
elegant look for downtown that included Italianate, Renaissance Revival, Queen Anne, Second
Empire, and Romanesque Revival styles. The fashionable late-19th-century streetfronts with
finely detailed upper levels of period fenestration and cornices stood wall to wall with their
neighbors on Main, Water, Broadway, Hamilton, and Mulberry streets.

Additionally, from the late 1880s well into the turn of the century, Georgetown’s
population was growing substantially, resulting in residential expansion onto farms contiguous
with the earlier city boundaries. On the south side of West Main Street, across the street and
slightly uphill to the west, on the former horse establishment known as Blue Grass Park, some
of the city’s wealthiest citizens were planning castle-like mansions. Among these were Kinzea
Stone (SC-G-98) , H.P. Montgomery (SC-G-122), and Annie E. Richards (SC-G-96), whose
large dwellings reflected mixed Queen Anne and Romanesque Revival influences. Directly
west and on the same side of the street as the jail, on the farm of James Y. Kelly, lot holders
had either recently moved into or were in the process of constructing fashionable Queen Anne
style houses. Among these were the companion Queen Anne Dr. F.F. Bryan (SC-G-120) and
George Bryan (SC-G-99) houses and the neighboring Albert W. Craig (SC-G-101) and R.S.
Hearne (SC-G-101) dwellings.

Therefore, continuing construction downtown, the need to develop residential lots in
west Georgetown, and the desire of developers and prospective property owners to build
imposing houses on those lots, along with an apparent need to replace the 1847 jail, contributed
to the county court electing in 1892 to have constructed a jail complex that would better
complement the emerging high style commercial and residential neighborhoods. In 1892 Scott
County Court voted to replace the old jail on the old town commons that the county court had
owned since 1821. The previous jail was constructed of large dressed blocks of limestone,
“some weighing 500 pounds,” and had solid iron doors. Surrounding it was a rock wall
described as having been 28 feet wide and 16 feet high. “Still many prisoners escaped,”
historian B.O. Gaines wrote.” As early as 1880, jailer James Pullen applied to the court for
funds to anchor and prop the jail roof, to repair the water tanks, pipes and stench traps, and to
run a force pump in the jail. The condition of the building was such by 1892 that contractors
had to burn vermin from the jail before demolition could begin.®

In May 1892 the court appointed a committee consisting of Ed Ward, J.J. Yates, James
A. Hamon, and E.T. Burgess “to receive bids for said work, to let contracts necessary, and
proceed with construction as soon as they can.” In June the committee estimated that the work
would cost $11,300. The court responded by authorizing the building committee to borrow that
sum from the Farmers Bank. Later that month the prisoners were moved to the Fayette County
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jail, and on July 7, designers and builders J.W. Lucas and J.T. Brooks, doing business as
Brooks and Lucas, gave a deed of trust with J.B. Finnell as trustee and Warren Clayton as
surety.” The complex that they constructed over the next several months continued to serve the

county, with little alteration, until the opening of the new Justice and Detention Center on
North Hamilton Street in 1990.%

J.W. Lucas and J.T. Brooks were in their prime jointly and individually as builders in
the various Victorian era styles in Georgetown. Prior to construction of the Jail Complex, the
partnership built on Military Street in east Georgetown a large unadorned building to house
Bluegrass Cordage Company’s twine factory (SC-G-179), the 1891 Romanesque Revival
Kinzea Stone building (demolished c. 1963) on West Main less than a block east of the Jail
Complex, and a home on Gano Avenue in 1891 for Judge George Viley Payne. Brooks also
worked independently, accomplishing several impressive building projects, including the
palatial 1892 Kinzea Stone (SC-G-98) residence on West Main Street, the 1893 Will N. Offutt
home (SC-G-17) on East Main Street, the c. 1895 Carter Moore Block (SC-G-79) on North
Broadway and Court streets, the 1895 G.H. Nunnelley building (SC-MC-39) on West Main
Street, the grand 1897 J.D. Grover (SC-G-18) home on East Main, the 1901 John W. Osborne
house (SC47) on Cincinnati Road, and the 1903 Elley Blackburn house (SC-G-24) on East
Main.’

The partners applied their well established Victorian-era design and building skills
when they constructed the jail and jailer’s dwelling. Both buildings relate well to design
features found on Scott County’s postbellum architectural landscape. The exterior of the jail
building retains much of the elaborate detail that gave it its earlier prominence. The intricate
corbeled jail cornice was prototypical of and perhaps the inspiration for later executions of
downtown buildings that the builders accomplished in the later years of the decade. Most
notable among these are cornices on Brooks’ Carter Moore Block (SC-G-79), a single building
with three separate facades; Lucas’ Wellington Hotel (SC-MC-3); and the Bradley building
(SC-MC-35). The builders were able to apply their creativity to the roof of the free-standing
Jail Complex in a way that builders of flat-roofed downtown commercial buildings could not.
Thus the richly corbeled and fenestrated dormers and the cupola, along with cresting and richly
tooled chimneys, stand out among Georgetown late Victorian era buildings.

The jailer’s dwelling, in addition to providing comfort and safety for the jailer’s family,
also presented an attractive streetscape component to the community. Italianate facade
embellishments on the complex were found on the town’s buildings newly constructed two
decades before and one decade after 1892. Those features even were added to update houses of
earlier periods that had plain facades, such as the Greek Revival-styled William Henry Moody
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House (SC-G-25) on East Main Street and the early Kentucky Dr. G.M. Bower House (SC-G-
156) on South Hamilton Street.

While the builders could have concentrated their creative talents on the jail, they chose
instead to embellish the dwelling with detail that would bring it into “vogue” with new and
renovated residential construction. Italianate-style residential construction that began in
Georgetown and Scott County with a flourish in the 1870s is represented by several basic
forms: (1) dwellings without a front-gabled ell; (2) buildings with a front-gabled ell; (3) and
buildings with a projecting central bay that in some instances carries a tower. Most of these
buildings have a decided horizontal emphasis, while a minority are more vertically stated.
Included in the group without the projecting frontal ell or central bay are the Paul Rankin
House (SCG36), 432 East Main Street; and James A. Long House (SC314) on U.S. 25 north of
Georgetown; and Elmwood (SC362) on Paris Road. All these properties meet National
Register criteria. Henry Viley Johnson House (SC196), S. Hardin Lucas House (SC339) on
Paris Road; and Hamon-Redford House (SCO14) in the village of Oxford have projecting
central bays. A trio of elaborately detailed Italianate examples with front-gabled ells anchor the
east end of the East Main Street residential district, the frame Steffee-Spears House (SCG47,
618 East Main), and the two brick examples to the east, Willa Viley Rankin House (SCG46,
616 East Main,) and J.W. Offutt House (SCG47, 614 East Main). Towered villas include the
vertical John B. Graves house (SC-G-16), 441 East Main, and the dwelling of Newton Craig
(SC138 ) on Frankfort Road. Eclipse Place (SC48) on Cincinnati Road has a projecting central
bay but lost its tower in the early part of the 20" century. Woodwork in the dwellings of all
three classifications, like that of the jailer’s dwelling, is substantial in composition and effect.
Winding stairways or stairs with landings and with large carved newel posts are typical. The
jailer’s dwelling ranks comfortably with these notable contributions to Georgetown’s
Victorian-era streetscape.

Crime and Punishment in Scott County, Kentucky, 1865-1918. The Jail Complex
important historical association as the place of incarceration between 1900 and 1908 of Caleb
Powers, Republican Kentucky Secretary of State, charged with conspiring with others to
arrange for the January 31, 1900 shooting of William Goebel, Democratic candidate for
Governor of Kentucky in the hotly contested 1899 contest, and of the briefer jailing of Henry
Youtsey, a clerk in Powers’ office, charged with being an accomplice to the killing. At the time
of the shooting, Goebel was approaching with almost certain success in contesting, before the
legislature’s election commission, the recent election and inauguration of the Republican
candidate for Governor, William S. Taylor. It was Goebel’s goal to prove that many of the
votes that had determined Taylor’s majority were illegally cast. Powers, elected Secretary of
State on the Taylor ticket, assumed a leading role in lobbying before the election commission.
Powers, who resided in the eastern Kentucky town of Barbourville, brought to Frankfort train
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loads of voters from predominantly Republican eastern Kentucky, to influence the commission.
The fatal shot was fired from Powers’ office in the Executive Office Building as Goebel was
walking from the street to the State House located next door. Shortly after the shooting and
before Goebel’s death three days later, the legislative committee declared Goebel to have
received the largest number of legally cast votes. Powers and Youtsey were lodged in the Scott
jail after James E. Cantrill, judge of Kentucky's Fourteenth Judicial District (Franklin, Scott,
Bourbon, and Woodford counties), moved the trials of the two men to Scott County."

The first trial of Powers began under the glare of national publicity on July 9, 1900 in
the Scott County Courthouse (SCMC19, National Register September 28, 1972) one and one-
half blocks away from the jail. After thirty-six court days of trial and twenty-four hours of
summations, Powers was found guilty and sentenced to life in prison. As Powers' conviction
was undergoing its first successful appeal, the trial of Youtsey began on October 8. Youtsey
was presented as the intermediary between Powers and Jim Howard, whose trial for having
fired the fatal shot had taken place the previous month in Frankfort, ending with a conviction
and death sentence. After Youtsey’s conviction and life sentencing, Powers faced a second
Democratic jury in October 1901, again before Judge Cantrill in Scott Circuit Court. Although
two previous accusers recanted their testimony, the twice-convicted Powers, sentenced to life in
prison, began a second appeal. The former secretary of state's third trial began in August 1903
with the prosecution, using with new testimony from Youtsey, seeking the death penalty.
Powers' main counsel Samuel M. Wilson successfully sought an appellate court mandate
disqualifying Cantrill from presiding. Although Powers delivered a seven-hour speech in his
own defense which left the majority of spectators and some jurors in tears, the jury found him
guilty and recommended punishment by death. Powers' life was spared by a reversal of the
verdict and sentence by the state Court of Appeals.

Powers appeared for his fourth trial in Scott County in late November 1907. On
January 2, 1908, the jury deadlocked on a reported vote of ten to two for acquittal. In June
Republican Governor Augustus Willson pardoned both Powers and Jim Howard. Powers was
released from the Scott County jail amidst a large crowd of admirers, including a number of
young women who had become quite enamored by the former Secretary of State. In 1919
Democratic Governor James D. Black pardoned Youtsey.

Thus the historic Scott County Jail Complex qualifies for the National Register under
Criterion C because of its distinctive design and physical characteristics, and under Criterion A
because of its association with the trials of individuals charged with complicity in the 1900
killing of Kentucky Governor William Goebel.

Endnotes: See Continuation Sheets, “Additional Documentation.”
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Section 10 Page 1
Scott County Jail Complex Scott County, Kentucky

10. Geographical Data

Verbal Boundary Description: Beginning 106 feet north of the north edge of East Main Street,
thence 125 feet north with the west edge of North Water Street to the southeast corner of S&D
Real Estate Limited Partnership c/o Dale Calvert, formerly Home Ice and Dairy, thence west
with S&D Partnership about 120 feet to the center of Big Spring Branch, thence south 50 feet
with Big Spring Branch, thence east 120 feet to point of beginning.

Verbal Boundary Justification: The boundary includes the lot on which the Former Scott County
Jail Complex is located, this being a tract 50 feet wide extending from the east edge of North
Water Street to the center line of Big Spring Branch, owned by Scott County Fiscal Court, and
extensions of the east and west lines 25 feet north and 50 feet south of the lot on which the jail
building is located. The 50-foot wide lot on which the jail is located, except for about two-feet
of the jail building (see Illustration # 9) was granted to Scott County Court in 1821 by the City
of Georgetown. The 50 and 25-foot extensions of the lot on either side of the jail remain the
property of the City of Georgetown although the property has been used continuously since 1898
by the county as property associated with the jail.
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Endnotes, Sections 7 and 8
1. Scott County Order Book B-2, p. 36.

2 .B.0O.Gaines, The B.O. Gaines History of Scott County (Georgetown, 1904, reprinted in 1981
by Frye Printing Company, I, 23; II, 99.

3. Scott County Order Book B-2, p. 36; B.O. Gaines, The B.O. Gaines History 1, 23; 11, 99; D.G.
Beers & J. Lanagan, “Map of Scott County, Kentucky, From New and Actual Surveys,”
(Philadelphia, 1879); Scott County Deed Books 6, page 241; 73, pages 187, 184, and 381; and
74, page 587; Georgetown Weekly Times, July 13, August 10, 1949.

4 . Mlustration 13 (1879 Map of Scott County, Kentucky, Beers and Lanagan, Philadelphia) and
[lustration 14 (1886 Sanborn Map of Georgetown, KY) reveal a jailer’s dwelling in the present
form on the lot.

5. Gaines, II, p. 23.

6 .B.0. Gaines, The B.O. Gaines History,l, 23; 11, 99; Georgetown Weekly Times, October 26,
1892; Scott County Order Book M, pages 260, 307.

7 . Scott County Order Book O, pages 430, 437, 439, 442, and 476.

8 .Scott County Order Book B-2, page 36, February 8,1821; Georgetown Weekly Times, July 6,
1892.

9. Ann Bolton Bevins, 4 History of Scott County As Told By Selected Buildings (Georgetown,
1981), 291-299; Georgetown Weekly Times, November 6, 1889; March 11, 1891; May 20, 1891;
May 22, 1892; June 7, 1893; September 25, 1895; January 20, 1897; July 21, 1903.

10.James C. Klotter, William Goebel: The Politics of Wrath (Lexington: The University Press
of Kentucky, 1977).
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MAIN CRoss ST. on BRoADWAY
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QUR SCOTT COUNTY RECORDS OF OUR CITY AND OF OUR COUNTY,

HOW SHOULD THEY BEST BE KEPT?

A componite Map, showing a portion of the ariginal, luts of the “Ploncer” “Nincties” (1790-1800),. from the Record
of depositions of culn\)\{uht-«l corners and linew in Ryecord Book A Poge 41, Seott County Clerk's office, uud referring more
purticularly to laots No. 6, 7, 16, 17 and 1, lying bewteen Main Cross and Water Street. ‘The most Western Boundary
of Lots af Geordetown, and shown by numbers in_clreles and dotted lines, with dimensions of 100 feet by 212 feet,

The Stray Pound, GOx;’ldme‘ct (1792) with the North Boundary coinceding with thut of the “Public Square” of our
“Pioneer Ninetles (179C-1100), property shown In the name of L. L. Herndon and known then as Village Mansion,

The jail site locaied orr the commons and acquired in 1821 by deed, from City, the north wall’ of residence and
praperty line coinciding.

The County shed or garnge (30x103 feet) on “commaons,
fire, in 1947 or 1948. The county had no deed to this property,

The site of J. R. Lancastee acquired by deed from city In 1933, and also “Quit” claimed by city inw1948. -
-~ A Baffle Wall on "‘commons” around which the employces of J. R. Lancaster had to go to service the,bisement of
his property.
Properly of commons “Quit" claimed by city in 1948, along with property formerly used by county for machinery,

" used since 1922 for machinery, ete. until destroyed by

etc.
,

A Bastnrd or Spurious Reference Point, neither a corner to jail property, or county shed.

A frontage of 24.60 feel between jail residence and ceunty shed, which could have been used as outlet for
street drainage, instead of putting oullet so. as Yo drain over private property (thhout remunerauon) bemg part of “com-
mon”.

--John.Payne, Toliver Craig and Elijah . .. sworn Justices of said County Court .. . on Tuesday, the 25th day of Sep-
‘!ember 1792 in Georgetawn at the . .. of George Boswell the said Justice met——-ugmenble to law have taken the several
oaths to,G rmment and of oftice took . . .. accordmgly as a court. B

Robert Johnson qualified as Deputy Surveyor, .

Present John Paynp and Chas. McHatton. Gentlemen ordered that the sent of Justice for Court be fixed in George-
town and that the Court House be erected on the Acre of Ground set a part by- Elifah Craig for that purpose and

(14
7

- known by the name of the Public Square, for which acre of Ground the sald Elijah is allowed- the sum of six pounds. | i

Isreal Grant is appointed to erec tray Pound, sixty feet by 30 (60x30) to be mill-posted and railed and ﬂnished'
Ry thenext Court at ths N.E, corner of the Public Squnre, tcr whlch is ul}owed the sum-of six- pounds.

< snaser.That—we have procured an order from the Board of Trustees of Georgetown' ‘maklng an approprlation of that ld!
of ground ta the Counly Court, gratis for the purpose aforesaid of erecting a Jall.

That -the lot' thus selected and nppropriated is’ bound ed, as described. .

nning at a point 60 feet West of the most Western Boundary of the Original Lota of sald town. 3_laid_down __

oull
for
anci

Thence
West to the center of the Big Spring Branch. Thence with the center of the Blg Sprlng Branch a southerly course to a
point from whi$h a due East course will strike the beginning. Thence East to the beginning,.

*. We may make nomﬁ commentx on the l“omel of the Gay Nlneuea 1890-1800 nnd the comgomlu in a later Lssue
ot the Time-. e ‘.

SN

WILLIAM J. PAYNE. - =

- ) R e s i
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.':"'N“" te help the medically Indigent--tut

R O R 3 LWV R BOF LT, SRS, ALEE R TR T T T T T *
h this ls nat the same as “indigent” it ™ QUIT ; X : O) ) ' X "
‘n.'.h::: Includes {amilles of moderste income, In N f_— .’ IT TITLE (1947-1348) /' W)les ) on . ,F/-} @V”.f. /é'(_o/cls '
s Indi- who canont mest the high costa of n‘ ’av. N ‘,(u Fiscal (.(ull! old-,luul alded, by ieed ur wtherwine, to We night ash I thg] County had ;
o does modern esre of this expensive disesse. :'n-q that -,(nu .IJI cummbsaioners, | the present late ttle (o the property, In questjoht vin G"/( g‘;
Lale. This The help is a gifi—noat a loan. While vauﬂxnlv the 'punluuc of a lot lnrl :\."lno et has sanl 1403, wl:y was It neceasury for  the .
have no familien that ran pay are axpected 10 ‘:1“.:’“,;‘":‘ tlu's:nryl e, | The puoint fld -0 retend Pacal Court tn Nov. 1019, 28 ,.:n.‘ A’U& 1 /lngi
Clty or | 90 8o no family is sxpected 1o lm- n May 11th, 1020 bids were opened | As to become w flour Inter, ordervd the ‘three (3) Commis-
poverhh Jusll o meet medicsl wx- fur the erection of s shed on the Juxli On which the anpcls duoie. nne. two,— | aloners to Investigpie the, purchese.ss, I R
v Voard henses for palia. property, under Initructions, o the anid more.” n lot for th"emmly "\M‘hlnnry."*-ﬁmwz $
aphtsl, b, Kven M yau ocan wasume fal | deoit County Clerk, W sdvertise fur| The County seenin W have trouble | that In March 1823 the City Councl) .
"‘:. 'l‘::l,: coats for initisl hospitalization, it ls » M:“' W knowing what 1t should clsim as| gave 40 the Scott Facsl g, R
ood ides 1o ses your Chopter. I The City Council records of March| the corners, 1o the land, In contraversy. il to_erect_n _machingry ghed oo
nunation yours should be a patient who ls 1922 show that tha Boolt Caunty Flacal| In the Counly allegation, It clalma, [ Water Street, and which seems to de
1tation lo seversly affected ‘I this eannot be Court wes given s permit Lo erect 8| s a corner, s potnt™ 12 feet from the m”(‘mmom"' snd: In con-
w asn the determined In the first levi days— machinery shed on Water street. Thia| (Sauth side} o] the present foondaton | troversy.
M your you may need halp lster on. 1Hl)g | proeme to be a plat on the “Commam® | of the Old County Garage, and runs Of the persons summoned (o appesr
sl Lrowtéd Dorrod In the weeks belore  your and no deed of conveysnce glven. ning to the South property fine of the | 10 testify in the tria) by the County
«ith your Cha pler saaumes financlul renponsl- In deed bouk 61, puge 242, under | Home e & Dalcy Cumpany and run-}or  Chy, one  person, will  Payne
vlatton I‘-Vlllt ,x'nm\m be pald nionthe after- date ol Dee. tat, 1033 the City ol | g buck Letween parailel lines o the | wis employed 1o render services to
wesiataie. wi <yl but the Chspter will Mep In al Georgetown deeded o tract of land | Mg Spring Nranch. the City of Georgetown, to search the
ed In the, -lul'vv {tme you really need help. |10 J. W Laneaster, north of wmd ad- e Cily of Georgetown obgreted 10| Recnrds of  Orders ol Flacal Court,
* Nutlonal ‘:h:::.'lru:k lthmlly talk with your | jolniux the ot on the Commans, un|he County’s clalm, and the Cireult] plal book, and deed books, In Scolt
Faratyste Chapler re r;n'nlnltve wt e hegin- which the Cuunty erccted the mach 1 Court ardered u ahare specilic o< 1 Caunty Clerk's office, snid Minutes of
ame of the |:‘ " inery ahesd. fination of the [t by snevey, af the | Grorgetown City Councll umd to com-
Yaxlongtnn } K . \ alization The Mayor an pinntor, wnd B Tand s centin i to be made by | pile wnd draft Plats for use in Suil
Htalonal 4. Chapters puy for Tnspitadization, fancaster, ua grantes, deetn ulocirar, e Cnanity to ket title of lot on Big Spring
Loabesia, M rofonsionnl services meluching nursloy \ v dese { the . ) ____)__L_J.um—-\m—-*“’ eanct d W 1. Scott C
- { physienl therapy, truoapartation 0 the descnptiun ol the cogveyuned I dhis aurvey A - Veanch an aer :""'- . ;“ ounty
Jth yaur | ahd phy ) lene e choasing 1o mentlon il southern | mention v nede 1o s tiun pipe wt] Fiscul Court v City o Georgetown
W Depart- | 19 and  from ’mn.ptlnln. Aun‘vu A'n'\:ll: boundinry e, us o e of the County | Siation Na 3 ab edpe wutan dine ol & (1847 [q'
venters . and - clinlea, Ir.”“,m " .‘|' . Gatuge progerty, us the county Bl Ao | concretr foamlatinn, now corner to Sadd WL Puyne mide two (2) Plaw
. touch | hospitalizatiun uml upplinnees e .‘ n; deed o the property, fram the City L the Seott County Jwl property far the Clly ul Georgetown conveylny I
o the wheelehutra, bruces, eh:,.' u'u e ‘ﬂ- Iowas using, nor had the ovcupaney TPhe present feamdatinn of the OW Y infarmation. ol
o hoae 1:’“‘" wre oo el o ml“ rlu’ "i hy the county ol 11% yewrs wn “Squat- 1 County Gurupe” in the allepation, and Oue, 1 vomposite Plat, showing lo- !
u‘,w_‘l-.-u-h enxe dn dechded upon o vtlu:l ten” from Murch 1922 1o Dec 1908, | eanerete foundution” ut Station No | cotiun of varieus lots adjaining the ‘ ’
h.m-ninw.lirul und l\nn.l\l‘.h:: "";"' .A’:“’"‘ wiven the County ownership by the |1, wre wne and the  snme tract in cuntroversy, The Plat was
: ”'“'.""w ta K‘V""l n‘b“,:; o :’h :K""ooo(; e of or whuse of the Fifteen Yeur Clupning Stution No 3 as » varner D never submitted, ss evidence in the
’“""l'“Ya| ””f" ‘", coler. ':" “ “ It i in Adverse Passearinn Stutue. Vo TTTE Tl property crestes i overlap | sult and douhtleus s filed awsy in the
et vepre- | polio potic nts were directly l.:‘ll“ou; The gruntor, wnd grantee have e P TTTeer thet the Jull property would | office records of City Altorney.
your own ' full or in part up o the :;“ ol 1 " towed  themaelves Lo beeome  the Tave i The land tn cantrovecsy over The other, a copy of the Boundarie:
mg  the ap- 5. In additlon, your upter x‘n. “Judns  Goat” in their carvless  und | the county allepation of 1 beginning | of the Originsl Lots of Georgetown
put you in fouch v;]\dlx.l)‘."l’\]" muru: anwarranted dexeription in the deed of | pointat 12 feet from the (South side) | from at, about 1800, und recorded in
entative will! for nursing. and physlent therapy & “property owners,” with other “hwma- | of present foundation, as clumed. Necors) Book “A™ Page’4l, in Scott
T ble sheep” of the profession followln However, the neurest corner ol the| County Clerk's office.
- Y o ' e 110 wong withaut comment or THising 8 Jai} property, to the land In con- This Plat was submitted by the City
> Pl . \ hand for correction, In any of thelroversy ls 248 fuet, us shiqwn on plat,| Attorney, us evidence in the Sult, and
- ib . “;‘ ) numerous occasions following, but us-| recently  pub jshed in Cearg:.lf)\flﬂ marked, as Exhibit “A" .
v } R 4 ed the same transmittal’ of  descrip- | Times (July th./laﬂ}v’""’_ In the compromisc the title to the )
h ‘ P! N Hion therein neted above. The point mentioned' as 12 feet from | (raet of land was not clearly defimed.
i Y The case of Scott county against| pipe in in really o Bastard of Spurtous | and was not carrled to the Court of
h y ETY n . |the Clty of Georgetown, to Quiet g iol, mot being & corner| Appeals by the City Atlorney for de-
B ; Title on property on Water Street| (o the Jail property of  corner to the | fnite ownership for lear of losing the
34|28 » R it B and fronting thereon claimed by each| property in cantroversy. case, thus mounting to s dog-fall, and
) . e ! came up for_trial in May 1947, and s The County mentions that approxi-| white washing of the Sult, by Quit
) . 18 i, recorded tn Scott Clreuit Court rec=| mately 125 {eet frorn the North Wall of | Cluims Deeds, and distribution of Ran-
S . R\ i ords as Sult 23014, File 5636 for Pub-| Jail were thé Stray Pens. som Money.
» 8 : lic Review. The only true Stray Pound or Stray| \The City has allow
1 i : . ! am surprised that our County| pin was at focation shown on piat.| claim Station No. 3, as s corner to the .
X . R Judge his so confused the allegations} Ay sometime the Stray Pen was aban- -y;n———“"‘ Sroperty, when {ro Trom the com-
P . lin “Paragraph I of the County,” with| ggned and any susy stock  caught Te Map made by Will Payne, Sta-
H . W Lhe use of his “Spitz Ball" which had | within the City limits, were placed | $57 R, § & hearest coroer_io
HE S 1 O . W = he followed the National sport might|in a livery stable for redemption BY | (he Jall_property ls 2460 feet seem-
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NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
(8-86) Total Page Number 20
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
CONTINUATION SHEET
Section Additional Documentation  Page 2

Scott County Jail Complex  Scott County, Kentucky

Photographs 1-26, Scott County Jail Complex, Scott County, Kentucky

On back of all photographs:

1. Name of Property: Scott County Jail Complex
2. County and State: Scott County, Kentucky

6. View & direction of camera

7. Photograph #

3. Photographer

4. Date of photograph

General information pertaining to all photos (except # 26).

3. Photographer: Ann Bolton Bevins

4. Date of all photographs except # 26: July 12, 2001; # 26: circa 1892

5. Location of negatives 1-25: Ann Bevins, 1175 Lexington Road, Georgetown, KY 40324

List of photographs:

. Complex, from southeast

. Jail, from southeast

. Porch, from southeast

. Rear of jail, from west

. Jail, from north

. Jail roof detail, from east

. Basement view, from southwest

. Jail: south door to portico from inside ell

. Jail kitchen, from south

10. Jail security control, from south

1 1. First floor of jail, from east

12. Second floor, jail, from southeast

13. Jailers dwelling from northeast

14. Dwelling, front door, from east

15. Dwelling, brickwork, from east

16. Eave of dwelling, from south

17. Jailer’ dwelling, from northwest

18. Rear of dwelling, from north

19. Stairwell of dwelling, from east

20. Mantel, window, from north

21. plaster applied to brick wall, from northwest
22. Ceiling lath, reworked window and plaster
23. Restored window, surrounding plaster

24. Restored window on ell of dwelling, from north
25. Dwelling dining ell, from northeast

26. C. 1892 photo by “Hutchings” of complex
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PS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
(Rev. 10-90)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
REGISTRATION FORM

1. Name of Property
historic name Scott County Jail Complex
other names/site number SC-G-201

2. Location

street & number 117 North Water Street not for publication N/A
city or town Georgetown vicinity N/A

state Kentucky code KY county Scott code209 zipcode 40324

3. State/Federal Agency Certification
As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 196G as amended, I hereby certify that

this X nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for
registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the
National Register Criteria. [ recommend that this property be considered significant ___ nationally ___ statewide_
_Xlocally. (See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

1’) ja// é-[% cC2
Signature oMfyiné official Davig.. Morgan, SHPO Date

Kentucky Heritage Council/State Historic Preservation Office
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. Natignal Park Service Certification
I, herfby certify that this property is:
entered in the National Register _

____See continuation sheet.
____determined eligible for the National Register
____See continuation sheet.
____determined not eligible for the National Register
____ See continuation sheet.
___removed from the National Register
_____other (explain):

ignature of Keeper Datg of Action



USDI/NPS NRHP Registration Form Page 2
Scott County Jail Complex Scott County, Kentucky

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
___private _X_building(s)
_X public-local ___ district
___ public-State ____site
____public-Federal ___structure
___object
Number of Resources within Property Number of contributing resources
Contributing Noncontributing previously listed in the National Register 0
2 buildings
sites Name of related multiple property listing
structures N/A
objects
2 0__ Total

6. Function or Use
Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions)

Cat: DOMESTIC Sub: single dwelling
GOVERNMENT correctional facility
Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions)
Cat: _ SOCIAL Sub: civic
WORK IN PROGRESS

7. Description
Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions)

LATE VICTORIAN Romanesque
LATE VICTORIAN Italianate
Materials (Enter categories from instructions)
foundation STONE limestone
roof METAL cast iron, copper
walls BRICK
STONE limestone
other WOOD porch, trim
METAL trim

Narrative Description See Continuation Sheets.




USDI/NPS NRHP Registration Form Page 3
Scott County Jail Complex Scott County, Kentucky

8. Statement of Significance
Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying
the property for National Register listing)

_X__ A Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the
broad patterns of our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

_x_C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction or represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a
significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield information important in prehistory or
history. ~

Criteria Considerations (Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)

owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or a grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the past 50 years.

Q@ 0o A0 o

Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions)
ARCHITECTURE  (Criterion C)
POLITICS/GOVERNMENT (Criterion A)

Period of Significance ¢. 1892; 1900-1908 Significant Dates __ 1892
1900-1908

Significant Person N/A

(Complete if Criterion B is marked above) N/A

Cultural Affiliation N/A

Architect/Builder Brooks, J.T. and Lucas, J.W. (dba Brooks & Lucas)

Narrative Statement of Significance See Continuation Sheets.

9. Major Bibliographical References See Continuation Sheets.

Previous documentation on file (NPS) ___designated a National Historic Landmark
____preliminary determination of individual listing ~ __ recorded by Historic American Buildings
(36 CFR 67) has been requested. Survey #

____previously listed in the National Register ___recorded by Historic American Engineering

_x_ previously determined eligible by the National =~ Record # ____
Register
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(8-86) USDI/NPS NRHP Registration Form OMB No. 1024-0018
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Scott County Jail Complex  Scott County, Kentucky

Primary Location of Additional Data: Name of repository: Kentucky Heritage

_x_ State Historic Preservation Office Council; and archives of preparer: 1175
____ Other State agency Lexington Road, Georgetown, KY

__Federal agency
___Local government
____University

____ Other

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property .344 acres

UTM References (Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

116713725 4231500 3 __ Georgetown Quad
2 4 .
Verbal Boundary Description and Boundary Justification See Continuation Sheets.
11. Form Prepared By

name/title Ann Bolton Bevins

organization N/A  date

street & number 1175 Lexington Road city or town Georgetown state KY zip code 40324
telephone _502-863-0197

Additional Documentation

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name 1. Scott County Fiscal Court name 2. City of Georgetown

George Lusby, Judge Executive Everette Varney, Mayor

street & number_101 East Main city street & number 101 Court Street

or town Georgetown state KY zip code 40324 city or town Georgetown _state KY zip code
telephone 502-863-7850 40324

telephone 502-863-9800
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7. Narrative Déscription
|

The Scott County Jail Complex (SC-G-201) includes the 1892 Romanesque Revival
style brick former jail and adjoining Italianate style brick jailer’s dwelling. The stylish and
solid design and workmanship of the complex straddles the Victorian era downtown
Georgetown on|the east and the Victorian era Main Street residential neighborhood to the west.
The complex is'located on a county-owned lot 50 feet wide, extending from the west edge of
North Water Street to the center of Royal Spring Branch, the lot having been carved from the
original “town commons” and granted as a jail site to the county by the city trustees in 1821.
Also included in the nomination are sections of lawn on both sides of the jail: 25 feet on the
north side and fifty-feet on the south. These strips of land are owned by the City of
Georgetown but have been considered over time as part of the jail location.'

The landscape in the vicinity of the Jail Complex has experienced a number of changes
from its earlier years as the “town commons” as depicted on the 1815 plat of the City of
Georgetown (Illustration 7 from Scott County Lines Book 1, page 39 ). At that time there was
a group of structures (numbers 1-5 on plat) on the east of Royal Spring Branch on the 50-foot
tract that became county property in 1821. The 1821 jail, a two-story log structure with large
stone chimneys jplaced on the outer side of the gabled end walls, stood “immediately adjoining
and on the north side of a lot whereon the stray pen now stands on Water Street.” At some point
in the 19* century, the county began to lodge stray livestock in livery stables. In 1847 the
county replaced the earlier jail with a building of huge blocks of limestone, “very large and all
nicely dressed, fome of which weighed 500 pounds.” The 1892 jail succeeded the 1847
facility. A building with the footprint of the present dwelling has stood on the site since at least
1879 when thedéeers & Lanagan map (I1lustration 13) was published. Though the county has
used land on either side of the 50-foot-wide lot over the years since 1821 for such purposes as
ingress and egress, parking, storage, and landscaping, no further grants of land have been made
by city to countj‘y government.

|

Attorney William J. Payne was apparently the first person to record the fact that the
south side of thj jail actually extends several feet onto city property. Payne published in the
Georgetown Weekly Times July 13 and August 10, 1949 (Illustration 9) a plat of the Jail
Complex’s relationship to the 1821 boundaries. In 1922 the city gave Scott County Fiscal
Court a permit to erect a machinery shed on the Water Street Commons on the north side of the
Jail Complex. 3?1 1933 the City of Georgetown sold J.R. Lancaster for $200 the lot immediately
north of the county garage. That lot extended 145 feet along North Water Street. Here
Lancaster const‘tucted a block building that housed a dairy. In 1947 and 1948, following a fire
that destroyed the county garage, Lancaster sold the dairy to Home Ice and Dairy, Inc., and the
City in three separate deeds extended the dairy’s property line to a point 25 feet north of the jail
and north along Water Street to a crossing that led across Royal Spring Branch to an African
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American settlement known as “Kellytown.” The dairy building has been converted into a
factory owned by S&D Real Estate Limited Partnership.’

Jail Building. The 1892 generously corbeled and elegantly detailed brick east-facing 2-
story Romanesque Revival-styled former jail (Photos 1-12, 26), built in 1892 at a cost of
$11,300, rises from a high basement foundation of limestone. Other details are crafted of wood
and metal. The jail’s brick exterior and roof of cast iron tiles conceal a two-story steel and
concrete jail incarceration structure (Photos 9-12). The jail building is three bays wide and six
bays long, having measurements of 56 feet by 24 feet. The banked stone basement foundation
is finished on the outside with large rough-faced blocks of limestone laid with matching mortar,
the joints tooled with a round bead. Brick is laid with contrasting mortar with a slightly
concave joint. Pilasters separate the bays . Windows have segmental arches. Corbeling rises
above a band of brick above the second story windows to the eaves. The jail foundation
conforms with the slope of the lot from North Water Street to Royal Spring Branch.

The main entrance to the jail is located on the east side of the building and is sheltered
by a small Romanesque Revival-styled portico (Photos 3). This doorway leads into a small
room known as the “booking room” where prisoners were received into the jail. Also leading
from the portico is a side entrance to the dwelling (Photos 2, 3, 8). The portico is approached
by two wide steps leading from the original stone plaza that has been covered with concrete.
Beneath the portico’s south-facing arch is a stone ledge; smaller ledges are placed at either side
of the entrance arch. Under the sill on the south side of the porch are decorative rectangular
openings. The portico’s flat roof has stone sills with stone-capped battlements.

The six-bay sides of the jail (Photos 1, 2, 5) are lighted by barred windows set in
segmental arched openings with splayed lintels one-and-one-half bricks high. Sills are stone.
All but a small narrow glazed vertical slit in each major opening in the jail is enclosed with
brick, a safety measure enacted in the 1960s. Pilasters flank the bays and extend from the
basement course to the heavily corbeled eaves. Windows pierce only the central of the three
bays of the rear of the building (Photo 4). Restoring these windows is a priority item on the
schedule adopted by the Scott County Arts Consortium, which leases the complex from Scott
County Fiscal Court. Attached to the south side of the jail is a fire escape that leads to first and
second floors, another 20" century safety addition (Photos 1,2). ‘

The iron-tiled hipped roof (Photos 1,2,4, 6) has two small chimneys on the south side
and a large and small chimney on the north side. Central to the ridgeline is a hexagonal cupola
with a metal roof capped with a cone-shaped pinnacle. The sides of the cupola have louvered
openings. Round metal pinnacles with conical caps extend from the corner pilasters. Attic
dormers (Photo 6) with three small double-hung six-light windows with segmental arched
openings and with small pinnacles, repeating the corner pinnacle design, central to the east and



